
 
 

 

 

 

       

   
 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

2. AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS      Action 

 

3. MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA      Action 

 

4. PRESENTATIONS/INTRODUCTIONS 

a) Presentation by Scott Cole of NC DOT regarding a noise barrier wall for the Monroe Bypass.  

Action by Council to consider approving Resolution #R160426-1; a Resolution in Support of a 

Noise Wall to be Constructed at Certain Locations Along the Monroe Bypass Project. 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR FY 2016/2017 BUDGET DEVELOPMENT 

 

7. LAW ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 

 

8. DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 

a) Department Head Update:  Planning & Neighborhood Services—Rox Burhans 

b) Department Head Update:  Community Development & Communications—Mike Parks  

 

9. CONSENT AGENDA        Action 

a) Approval Budget Amendments #547-#551 and #554 

b) Approval of Classification Plan and Pay Scale 

c) Approval of Crooked Creek Park Master Plan Concept 1B  

d) Approval of a Resolution which allows employees and Council to participate in the NC Public 

Employee Deferred Compensation Plan under Internal Revenue Code 457(b) 

 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS        Action 
                 – Please adhere to the following guidelines: 

 Proceed to the podium, and state your name and address clearly; 

 Be concise; avoid repetition; limit comments to three (3) minutes or less; 

 Designate a spokesperson for large groups 

 

 

    TOWN COUNCIL 
 

     Gordon B. Daniels 
 

       Gary M. Savoie 
 

       Amy R. Stanton 
 

     Mark A. Wireman 

MAYOR 
Michael L Alvarez 

 

MAYOR PRO TEM 

David L. Cohn 

 

TOWN MANAGER 

Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E. 

Indian Trail Town Council  

Regular Meeting  

Tuesday, April 26, 2016 
Civic Building—6:30 PM 



11.  OLD BUSINESS ITEMS        Action 
a) Council consideration to approve By-Laws for a new Economic Development Committee 

(staff was directed to draft new By-Laws by Council) 

b) Council consideration to approve an outline for holding Town Hall Meetings once per quarter 

(staff was directed by Council to provide a plan of action for this meeting forum) 

c) Council consideration to award bid for resurfacing contract 

d) Council consideration of Operational & Fiscal Review Phase II Fee Proposal ( I changed) 

        

12. NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 

a) Council consideration of selecting outside Counsel for review of Operational & Fiscal Review 

Phase I  

b) Council consideration of to approve Capital Project Ordinance Closeout for Unionville Road 

Sidewalk 

c) Council consideration to approve Capital Project Ordinance Closeout for Chestnut Parkway 

Extension Phase I 

d) Council consideration to approve Capital Project Ordinance Closeout for Chestnut Square 

Park 

e) Council consideration of amendments to the Board & Committee Appointment Policy 

(Councilman Cohn) 

f) Council consideration to schedule and advertise a Public Hearing at the May 10
th
 Council 

Meeting to get public input on decreasing our Indian Trail Tax Rate from 18.5 cents to 17.5 

cents due to having a total of $32 Million in cash in our Town Fund Balance on Dec 31
st
 and 

residents and businesses deserve a tax decrease with these excessive amount of accumulated 

funds. (Councilman Daniels) 

g) Council consideration that a Town Hall Exterior Design with a cupola was approved by the 

Mayor and Town Council on November 25
th
, 2014.  My understanding is that a cupola has 

now been removed from the Town Hall exterior design.  Town staff indicated they would only 

make changes to the interior of the building.  Please have the Town Manager distribute 

documentation to the Mayor and Town Council before the April 26
th
 Council meeting that 

shows that Mayor and Town Council officially voted to remove this exterior feature from the 

previously Council approved exterior design and any communications with Creech giving 

them direction on removing the Cupola.  (Councilman Daniels) 

  

13. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

14.  UPDATES 

a) Manager’s Update:  Scott Kaufhold, Town Manager 

 

15. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

16. CLOSED SESSION          Action 

 

17. POSSIBLE ACTION FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION 

 

18. ADJOURN          Action 



 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Town Council and Mayor 

 

FROM:         Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 
 

DATE:          April 26, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:   Action by Council to consider approving Resolution # R160426-1—A Resolution in 

Support of a Noise Wall to be Constructed at Certain Locations Along the Monroe Bypass Project. 

 

General Information: 

 

The Town Manager was directed to draft a “strong resolution” requesting that NC DOT construct a noise 

wall at certain areas along the Monroe Bypass during the April 12, 2016 Town Council Meeting. Mr. 

Kaufhold has drafted such resolution.   

 

Mr. Scott Cole of NCDOT will make a presentation regarding this matter to Council who can then take 

action regarding the resolution as they see fit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

RESOLUTION # R160426-1   

TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A NOSIE WALL TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT CERTAIN 

LOCATIONS ALONG THE MONROE BYPASS PROJECT 

 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to requirements established by Federal law, U.S. Department of 

Transportation, North Carolina Department of Transportation Traffic Noise Abatement Policy and Noise 

Mitigation Measures; 

 

WHEREAS, a noise wall analysis related to the construction of the Monroe Bypass (“the 

project”) identifies a benefit to certain properties along the corridor; 

 

WHEREAS, the noise wall analysis excluded a number of residential subdivisions and lots that 

were just outside the policy criteria to justify the construction of a noise wall along the project; 

 

WHEREAS, the quality of life and home values may be adversely affected by the project for 

residents who live along the corridor at locations without a noise barrier wall;  

  

 WHEREAS, local elected officials have received an outpouring of concerns and complaints from 

residents in locations directly impacted by the project but not recipients of a noise barrier wall; 

 

WHEREAS, local elected officials have received a petition signed by over 500 residents who 

live along the project requesting a noise barrier wall be built to protect the quality of life and value of 

their homes;    

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

INDIAN TRAIL THAT: 

 

The Indian Trail Town Council formally requests that the NCDOT build a noise barrier wall to secure the 

well being, quality of life, and home value for the residents of the Bonterra and Arbor Glen subdivisions. 

 

Adopted this 26th day of April, 2016. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL OF INDIAN TRAIL NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

 

       _______________________________________ 

                     Michael L. Alvarez, Mayor 

       

       Attest: 

 

                    ______________________________________ 

                                                                                                          Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 

























































 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Mayor and Town Council 

 

FROM:         Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 
 

DATE:          April 26, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:  Council consideration to approve Classification Plan/Pay Scale 

                       

 

General Information: 

 

During the two Budget Retreat/Workshops held by Council in March and April Mrs. Susan Manning, HR 

Consultant, presented her findings to Council of the market study she had been contracted to do for the 

Town in order to prepare a new/updated/market-competitive Classification Plan/Pay Scale.  During the 

budget meetings Council reviewed and discussed the Classification Plan/Pay Scale at length and it should 

be officially adopted.  Mr. Kaufhold, Town Manager, has full authority in implementing any employee 

salary adjustments that he believes are necessary based upon the updates.   

 

Required Actions: 
 

Approve the 2016-2017 Classification Plan/Pay Scale  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Indian Trail Pay Plan 2016-2017

Classification Minimum Market Maximum FLSA

Maintenance Technician 22,400 28,000 36,400 Nonexempt

23,520 29,400 38,220

Customer Service Representative 24,696 30,870 40,131 Nonexempt

Senior Customer Service Rep 25,931 32,414 42,138 Nonexempt

Equipment Operator 27,227 34,034 44,244 Nonexempt

Administrative Assistant 28,589 35,736 46,457 Nonexempt

Recreation Specialist Nonexempt

Accounting Technician 30,018 37,523 48,780 Nonexempt

Revenue Technician Nonexempt

Code Enforcement Officer Nonexempt

Crew Leader Nonexempt

Parks & Grounds Supervisor 31,519 39,399 51,219 Nonexempt

Planning Technician 33,095 41,369 53,780 Nonexempt

Engineering Technician Nonexempt

Recreation Program Coordinator 36,487 45,609 59,292

Accountant 38,311 47,889 62,256 Nonexempt

Planner Nonexempt

Revenue Collector 40,227 50,284 65,369 Exempt

Town Clerk 42,238 52,798 68,637 Nonexempt

Communications Coordinator Exempt

Public Works Superintendant 44,350 55,438 72,069 Exempt

Contract Administrator Exempt

Engineering Project Manager 46,568 58,210 75,673 Exempt

Senior Planner Exempt

48,897 61,121 79,457

Assistant Finance Director 51,341 64,176 83,429 Exempt

53,908 67,385 87,600 Exempt

56,603 70,754 91,980 Exempt

Parks & Recreation Director 59,434 74,292 96,580 Exempt

HR Director 62,406 78,007 101,409 Exempt

65,526 81,907 106,479

68,802 86,002 111,803

Planning Director 72,242 90,302 117,393 Exempt

Engineering & PW Director 75,854 94,817 123,262 Exempt

Finance Director 75,854 94,817 123,262 Exempt

Assistant Town Manager 79,646 99,558 129,425 Exempt



 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Town Council and Mayor 

 

FROM:         Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 
 

DATE:          April 26, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:  Council to approve Resolution#160426-2 A Resolution to join deferred compensation plan 

under Internal Revenue Code 457(b) for Public Employees of North Carolina     

                       

 

General Information: 

 

As presented by the HR Director during the April 16, 2016 Budget Retreat this resolution is necessary for 

participation in the state’s deferred compensation plan 457(b), which Council members, in addition to 

staff, are also eligible to contribute. 

 

Required Actions: 
 

Council Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 
TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL 

 

 

RESOLUTION #R160426-2 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION TO JOIN DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN UNDER INTERNAL 

REVENUE CODE 457(b) FOR PUBLIC EMPLOYEES OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Town of Indian Trail, North Carolina wishes to 

provide a qualified defined contribution plan to the employees of the Town of Indian Trail; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina has established the North Carolina Public 

Employee Deferred Compensation Plan, a qualified governmental Deferred Compensation Plan 
under Internal Revenue Code §457(b) for public employees of North Carolina which includes 
members of the Governing Body. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Town of Indian Trail Town 

Council has adopted the North Carolina Public Employee Deferred Compensation Plan also known 

as “NC Deferred Comp” under the terms of the Plan Document and the Third-Party Administrator 

Agreement.  All employees shall become eligible to defer compensation immediately. 

 
 
Adopted this 26 day of April, 2016. 

 
TOWN COUNCIL OF INDIAN TRAIL NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 
 
 
 

Michael Alvarez, Mayor 
 

 

 

Attest: 
 
 

Kelley Southward Town Clerk 



 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Town Council and Mayor 

 

FROM:         Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 
 

DATE:          April 26, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:  Council consideration to approve By-Laws for a new Economic Development Committee. 

                       

 

General Information: 

 

Council previously directed staff to draft By-Laws for a new Economic Development Committee.  A draft 

has been created for Council’s consideration. 

 

Required Actions: 
 

After discussion and making any necessary changes Council may approve or direct staff to make changes 

and bring back to Council for the May 10
th
 meeting.  Or, Council may elect to not approve any By-Laws 

at this time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 

BY-LAWS 

 

I. ESTABLISHMENT 

 

Let it be declared that upon adoption of these By-Laws contained herein the Indian Trail 

Town Council on the _____ day __________________ 2016 established an Economic 

Development Committee (EDC) that shall be an advisory committee to the Town Council in 

the areas of economic development in the Town of Indian Trail, NC.  The EDC shall take 

direction from Town Council, provide information to Town Council, make recommendations 

to Town Council, and operate/function in accordance with the provisions contained herein 

these By-Laws.  The EDC is a public body and shall therefore function in full accordance 

with the North Carolina Open Meetings Law which can be found in Chapter 143, Article 33C 

of the NC General Statutes. 

 

II. PURPOSE 

 

Section 1.  Mission Statement: 

The role of the Indian Trail Economic Development Committee (EDC) is to develop an 

opportunity-specific and action-oriented plan that fosters business growth and retention in 

Indian Trail while assisting to repair and expand the Town’s infrastructure. 

 

Section 2.  Broad-Base Goals: 

a) Support all sizes of enterprise in Indian Trail from the small retail & service 

establishments to large industries; 

b) Ensure that the local investment climate is functional for local businesses; 

c) Encourage the formation of new enterprises and new types of enterprises; 

d) Attract external investment (regionally/nationally/internationally); 

e) Find innovative ways to encourage or require investments in infrastructure systems; 

f) Support business retention and growth; 

g) Identify/target areas in Town for business regeneration and/or growth through the 

establishment of an area based initiatives plan; 

h) Discover ways to support newly emerging/informal/non-traditional businesses; and  

i) Improve Indian Trail’s economic competiveness to retain jobs and improve incomes. 

 

III. APPOINTMENT & TERMS 

 

Section 1.  Voting Members: 

All members shall be appointed by Town Council in accordance with the current adopted 

Indian Trail Board & Committee Appointment Policy.  The EDC shall consist of at least five 

(5) but no more than seven (7) voting members.  One member must be a resident of Indian 



2 
 

Trail and ideally another member should be an Indian Trail resident that also owns and 

operates an Indian Trail Business.  The remaining three (3) to five (5) members should all be 

Indian Trail business owners (no managers unless the manager is also the business owner).   

 

Section 2.  Terms of Voting Members: 

Terms shall be three (3) year staggered terms that begin July 1
st
 and expire June 30

th
.  In 

order to reach the staggered terms the initial terms shall be as follows: 

 Seat #1 initial term 3-years ending June 30, 2019 (2
nd

 term 3-years ending 2022) 

 Seat #2 initial term 2-years ending June 30, 2018 (2
nd

 term 3-years ending 2021) 

 Seat #3 initial term 1-year ending June 30, 2017 (2
nd

 term 3-years ending 2020) 

 Seat #4 initial term 3-years ending June 30, 2019 (2
nd

 term 3-years ending 2022) 

 Seat #5 initial term 2-years ending June 30, 2018 (2
nd

 term 3-years ending 2021) 

 Seat #6 initial term 1-year ending June 30, 2017 (2
nd

 term 3-years ending 2020) 

 Seat #7 initial term 3-years ending June 30, 2019 (2
nd

 term 3-years ending 2022) 

 

Section 3.  Ex-officio Members: 

Ex-officio members will not vote and their attendance shall not be considered in determining 

a quorum.  Ex-officio members are encouraged to participate in discussion at meetings and 

assist with other aspects of the EDC.  There shall be three (3) ex-officio (non-voting) 

members of the EDC.  The Town Manager (or the Assistant Town Manager may be 

designated to serve in the his/her place) shall be an ex-officio member of the EDC and may 

engage staff support as he/she deems necessary.  The Director of the Monroe-Union County 

Economic Development Director or his/her designee shall be an Ex-officio member.  Town 

Council shall appoint one of their own members to be the third Ex-officio member who shall 

also be a liaison between Town Council and the EDC.  The Town Council Ex-officio 

appointment shall be for one (1) year beginning July 1
st
 and ending June 30

th
; Council may 

reappoint or make a new appointment during their first meeting in July each year upon 

nomination and vote. 

 

Section 4. Vacancies: 

Vacancies occurring in the middle of an unexpired term shall be filled in accordance with the 

current/adopted Board & Committee Appointment Policy of the Town for such vacancies. 

 

IV.  OFFICERS  

 

Section 1.  Officers Required: 

The officers of the EDC shall consist of a Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson and a Secretary.  

All officers shall be voting members. 

 

Section 2.  Chairperson 

The Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the membership of the EDC from 

among its members.  The term of the Chairperson shall be for one (1) year and until a 

successor is elected, beginning with the first regular meeting in January of each calendar 

year.  The Chairperson shall be eligible for reelection without limitation. 

 



3 
 

The Chairperson shall have the right to vote on all matters before the EDC unless excused in 

accordance with NC General Statutes with regard to conflicts of interest (as is the case with 

any voting member see Part VI of this document).  Unless absent or excused, the Chairperson 

shall chair each meeting of the EDC.  The Chairperson shall decide upon all points of order 

and procedure unless otherwise directed by a majority of the EDC in session at the time.   

 

Section 3.  Vice Chairperson 

A Vice Chairperson shall be elected from among the members in the same manner and for 

the same term as the Chairperson.  The Vice Chairperson shall serve as Acting Chairperson 

in the absence of the Chairperson and in such capacity, shall have the same powers and 

duties as the Chairperson.  Should both the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson not be in 

attendance at a meeting but a quorum of voting members present those voting members 

should call the meeting to order and as the first order of business elect one of their own to 

Chair that meeting. 

 

Section 4.  Secretary 

A Secretary shall be elected from among the members in the same manner and for the same 

term as Chairperson and Vice Chairman.  The Secretary should be responsible for drafting 

and keeping the minutes of all EDC meetings (with the exception of Closed Session 

proceedings see Part V, Section 2 below).  At a minimum the minutes shall include the date, 

time, location, those present and action taken (i.e. recommendations made to Town Council) 

for all EDC meetings.  The Secretary may elect to use an audio recording device to record 

meetings and then assist in the drafting of the minutes.  

 

V. MEETINGS 

 

Section 1.  Open Meetings Law 

As previously stated, the Indian Trail Economic Development Committee is a public body 

that is subject to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law meaning that all meetings are open 

to the public and should be duly notified and minutes of proceedings should be kept (see 

Chapter 143, Article 33C of the NC General Statutes for details of the Open Meetings Law). 

 

Section 2.  Closed Sessions 

There may be times when the EDC may need to discuss specific economic development 

projects and therefore shall need to meet in Closed Session, which is an exception of the 

Open Meetings Law; provisions for meeting in Closed Session can be found in NC General 

Statutes 143-318.11.  The Town Manager, in consultation with the Town’s legal counsel, 

shall recommend when the EDC meets in Closed Session and shall be responsible for 

adherence to all laws regarding Closed Session.  The Town Manager shall be responsible for 

creating and keeping the minutes of Closed Sessions.  A Closed Session will always begin in 

open Session of a meeting; the EDC must vote to enter Closed Session pursuant to the 

applicable sub-section of N.C.G.S 143-318.11 

 

Section 3.  Meeting Types 

a) Regular Meetings of the EDC shall be held monthly.  Upon initial appointment of 

members the Town Manager should organize the first meeting and supply the date, 



4 
 

time and location of that first meeting to the Town Clerk within 48 hours of that 

meeting (excluding weekends and holidays) so that the Town Clerk can provide 

proper notice of the initial meeting.  The first order of business on the initial meeting 

agenda should be to elect officers and the second order of business shall be for the 

EDC to select a normal monthly meeting day/time/location (for example the 3
rd

 

Tuesday of the month at 7pm).  The Town Manager should notify the Town Clerk of 

the normal meeting day/time/location selected by the EDC so that proper notice of 

EDC regular meetings can be disseminated.  Should the EDC ever wish to change the 

date/time/location of Regular Meetings after establishment Regular Meetings such 

should appear as an item on an EDC Regular Meeting agenda for vote and action by 

the EDC.  The Town Clerk should be notified of any changes in the Regular Meeting 

day/time/location. 

b) Special Meetings of the EDC shall either be voted upon in Open Session of a 

properly noticed meeting (normally a Regular Meeting) or may be called by the 

Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson if the Chairperson is unavailable or in capacitated) 

by signing a Special Meeting Call Notice within 48 hours of the Special Meeting 

(excluding weekends and holidays).  The Chairperson shall notify all EDC members 

of any Special/Called Meeting.  Only those items for which the special meeting was 

scheduled may be discussed.  The Town Clerk shall be notified of any Special 

Meeting that is called by the Chairperson within 48 hours of the Special Meeting in 

order to give proper public notification. 

 

Section 4.  Quorum 

A Quorum of the EDC shall be required to open any meeting and to conduct business.  A 

quorum shall be a majority of seated voting members (i.e. if there are only 5 voting 

member seats fill a quorum shall consist of 3 members present; if there are 6 or 7 voting 

member seats filled then a quorum shall consist of 4 members). 

 

Section 5.  Meeting Attendance 

Attendance is essential for a successful EDC.  Excluding extenuating circumstances any 

member who fails to attend at least 75% of Regular and Special EDC meetings in any 

one-year period shall be subject to be removed from the EDC by Town Council.  The 

Chairperson is responsible to report any member who fails to attend 75% of meetings to 

Town Council.   

 

Section 6.  Agenda/Order of Business 

All meetings shall be open to the public. The order of business at meetings shall generally 

be as follows: 

a) Call to Order/Declare a Quorum/Roll Call 

b) Pledge 

c) Approval/Adjustment of Minutes 

d) Old Business 

e) New Business 

f) Adjournment 

 



5 
 

The Chairperson shall set the agenda for meetings and may amend the order of business 

at the time of setting the agenda or during Open Session of the meeting.  Agendas and 

any supporting documentation shall be distributed to members as soon as reasonably 

possible prior to a meeting.  However, it should be noted that agendas are not statutorily 

required but strongly encouraged to be used on a regular basis.  The absence of a 

prepared agenda or not disbursing timely in no way constitutes the canceling of a 

meeting. 

 

Section 7.  Motions and Voting 

All motion shall be clearly stated by the member making the motion.  All motions shall 

require a second in order to be put to a vote.  Any motion that does not receive a second 

shall die due to lack of a second.  Voting, at the discretion of the Chairperson, shall be by 

voice or show of hands; the majority shall rule in the passing/failing of a vote.  It is the 

duty of all EDC members present at a meeting to vote on all issues coming before the 

EDC unless a member has been excused by a vote of the EDC to abstain from voting 

because the member being excused as a conflict of interest prescribed by those specific 

instances noted in NC General Statutes.  Any non-excused member who abstains from 

voting shall be counted as having cast an affirmative vote (i.e. a “yes” or “aye” or the 

like).  After a vote, the Chairperson shall be responsible for clearly stating if the motion 

passed or failed and by what ratio.   

 

VI. RULES OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

Section 1.  Influence/Intimidation 

No member of the EDC shall seek to influence any decision of any other member through 

means of intimidation of any kind. 

 

Section 2. Conflicts of Interest 

No member of the EDC shall participate in any action or cast a vote involving any  matter 

that is before the EDC which may result in a private benefit to themselves, their 

immediate relatives or their business interest.  A member may be excused from voting 

(by a vote of the EDC) on a particular issue under the following circumstances: 

a) If the member has a direct financial interest in the  outcome of the matter at hand; 

b) If the matter at hand involves a business entity in which the member is an officer 

or director; or  

c) If the matter at hand involves the member’s own official conduct. 

 

If an EDC member determines that he/she may have a conflict of interest on a particular 

issue, he/she shall disclose the nature of such conflict and request to be excused from 

deliberating and voting on the issue related to the conflict.  The remaining EDC 

members, by a majority vote, shall determine if such conflict exists or not.  If a member 

is excused from voting, he/she shall leave the meeting table and not participate in any 

further discussion on the matter.  In no instance may a member be excused from voting 

merely due to an unwillingness to vote on the issue at hand and where no conflict of 

interest is found to exist.  A challenge to the existence of a conflict of interest or 

challenge of an undisclosed conflict of interest may be filed by any member of the EDC.  



6 
 

Any Challenge made to the EDC shall be supported by competent evidence and shall be 

submitted at a properly convene meeting of the EDC.  The EDC shall hear all evidence.  

In order to find that a member does have a conflict of interest, a majority vote of the 

remaining members shall be required. 

 

VII. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENTS 

 

These rules shall at all times be consistent with all other ordinances of the Town of Indian 

Trail and the State of North Carolina.  These By-Laws, within the limits allowed by law, 

may be emended by Town Council at their discretion with our without a recommendation 

by the EDC. 

 

 

Adopted this the _____ day of ____________ 2016. 

 

 

 

 

    

 

        ________________________ 

        Michael L. Alvarez, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   Memo 
 

To:    Mayor and Town Council 

From:   Staff 

Date:  April 19, 2016 

RE: Council Consideration to approve an outline for holding Town Hall Meetings 

once per quarter 

History:  Upon being sworn-in to office on December 8
th

, 2015 Councilman Mark Wireman 

proposed to hold “Town Hall Meetings” where residents could be made informed about what is 

happening in Indian Trail, ask questions and be provided responses. 

 

Proposal:  Upon further discussion with Councilman Wireman staff has deduced that these 

meetings should differ from Town Council meetings in that:  

(1) Town Hall Meetings would not be official meetings as there would be no quorum of 

Town Council present but rather only one or two Council Members present (ideally 2) 

along with the Town Manager and some department heads or other key staff and/or law 

enforcement representatives;  

(2) These meetings would be held only once per quarter;  

(3) Meetings would be held on Thursday evenings (7pm to 8pm) or Saturday mornings 

(10am to 11am);  

(4) An effort would be made to hold the meetings at different venues around town to make 

them more easily accessible to a wider variety of residents; and  

(5) The Meetings should be held to about an hour and begin with a 15-20 minute update from 

Town Officials about what is going on in Town.  Then, the floor would be opened to 

residents so that there could be open back-and-forth discussion between Town Officials 

and the residents of Indian Trail.  If officials did not have the information to answer 

questions, residents names and contact information would be sought so that the matter 

could be researched and an answer provided to the resident as soon as possible. 

 

Initial Meeting:  Staff proposes to Town Council that the first Town Hall Meeting forum be 

held on Thursday, May 26, 2016 at the Town’s Civic Building (to gauge how large a venue 

should be sought in other areas of Town) from 7:00 PM to 8:00 PM.   

 

Remaining 2016 Meetings:  In keeping with that quarterly trend (above) the remaining 2016 

meetings could be held on a Saturday morning in August and a Thursday evening in November.  

Staff would make efforts to secure other venues at different locations in town for the 3
rd

 and 4
th

 

quarter meetings. 

 

Participation:  The thought is for Council members to volunteer to be the elected official 

representatives at each meeting (no more than 2 at each meeting) 

 

Required Action:  Council should make adjustments as they see necessary and approve so that 

staff can move forward in scheduling the meetings and notifying the public. 



 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Town Council and Mayor 

 

FROM:         Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E., Town Manager 
 

DATE:          April 26, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:   2016 Resurfacing Contract – Bid Results 

 

Background Information: 

 

Staff will hold a formal bid opening for the 2016 Resurfacing Contract, 505-2016-001, on 

Thursday, April 22, 2016. The bid tab information will be provided to Council following review 

by staff.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Town Council and Mayor 

 

FROM:         Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E., Town Manager 
 

DATE:          April 26, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:   Operational and Fiscal Review Phases II Fee Proposal 

 

General Information: 

 

Phase I of the Operational and Fiscal Review is complete. The recommended approach, approved by 

Council, was divided into three phases. Staff recommends proceeding with Phase II. 

 

Required Actions: 
 

Council Approval 

 

Attachment: 
 

Barker and Jones Fee Proposal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 

TO:               Town Council and Mayor 

 

FROM:         Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E., Town Manager 
 

DATE:          April 26, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:   Council Consideration of Selecting Outside Counsel for Review of Operational & Fiscal       

                      Review Phase I 

 

General Information: 

 

Staff recommends obtaining outside counsel to provide legal opinion. 

 

Required Actions: 
 

Council Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





















TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 

This form must be completed and attached to all supporting documentation for items to be included 

on the Town of Indian Trail Town Council Agenda. 

 

Submitted By: ___Mayor Pro Tem David Cohn____         Department: _____Council__________ 

 

Contact Phone # (_____)__________________________ Date Submitted ___4/18/2016________ 

 

Date of Town Council Meeting to consider this item: ___4/26/2016_______ 

 . 

Please indicate how much time you expect this matter to take:   __5 min_____ 

Description (give short summary of topic, this is how item appears on the Agenda.) 

Amend Board/Committee Appointment Policy, Section II (A) so that only residents are eligible to serve and 

Section II (H) to un-mandate Council from advancing Alternate members to Regular Member seats.  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Who will attend Council meeting able to respond to questions?  Give name & title:  

____David Cohn_____________________________________ 

 

Supply General Statute or local ordinance that governs this item (attach copy) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Has this item been reviewed by Town Attorney?  Yes _______  No __x___  (Attach recommendation.) 

What action is requested of the Council? __approve amended policy___________________ 

What action is requested of the Manager?  _none_____________________________ 

Are Town funds required?  Yes  /  No   $_____________________Funding Source ______________ 

 

 

** If requesting a Public Hearing, attach a copy or sample Ad to run in newspaper ** 

Where does this item need to appear?  Check all that apply: 

 ____ Consent Agenda ____ Schedule Public Hearing** ____Discussion 

 ____ Presentation/Recognition ____Closed Session ____Work session 

 ___x_ New Business  ____ Old Business 

*Board, commission, or group requesting joint meeting:_____________________________________ 



  

 

Page 1 of 4 

Adopted May 24, 2011 

Revised: 6-24-2014; 12-08-2015/1-12-2016; 

 

 

APPOINTMENT POLICY 

SECTION I: SCOPE:  

This Policy serves to provide procedures for the acceptance of names, 
interview process, selection, and appointment of citizens interested in 
serving on Boards and Committees which are appointed by the Town 

Council. This Policy is in place to assist the Town Council in making informed 
choices for Boards/Committees.  

SECTION II: GENERAL: 

A. RESIDENCY:  No person shall be eligible to apply for board/committee 
seats unless he/she is a property owner or resident of the Town, with the 
exception of the Business Owner’s Advisory Economic Development 

Committee (see By-Laws for details) and the ABC Board (per NC General 
Statutes).  Ex-officio members are exempt from the residency 
requirement. 

B. PUBLIC NOTICE OF OPENINGS: There will be a public notice of 
board/committee seats which are being appointed posted in at least 

two (2) public places, and inserted in the local newspaper before April 
1st (Boards & Committees) of each year. This notice will include both 
vacant and expiring positions. 

C. SUBMISSION OF CANDIDACY IN WRITING: Interested citizens must 
submit their candidacy by filing a Committee Appointment Application with 

the Town Clerk no later than May 1st (Boards & Committees) in order to be 
considered.  The application is available at the Town Clerk’s Office or at 
www.indiantrail.org.  Current members seeking reappointment and 

Alternates who desire to be appointed as regular members must also 
apply in writing. 

D. DATE OF APPOINTMENT: Appointments will be made at a Council 

meeting before July 1st for Boards & Committees. 

E. RE-ADVERTISING:  If all positions are not filled at that time, the 

Town Clerk may re-advertise for citizens to fill the empty positions. 

F. EMPTY POSITIONS: If empty positions still remain, these positions 

http://www.indiantrail.org/


2 

 

Adopted May 24, 2011 

Revised: 6-24-2014; 12-08-2015/1-12-2016; 

may be filled by the Town Council at any time during the year, following 
the procedures as outlined in A - C above. The time frames shall allow 

for a minimum of two weeks posting for filing. 

G. UNEXPIRED TERMS: If the Board/Committee intends to make 

appointments to fill unexpired terms, created by vacancies, as 
expeditiously as possible. The Board/Committee recognizes that the 
urgency of filling such vacancies may vary depending upon the 

circumstances of the vacancy. The Board/Committee shall make every 
effort to make appointments during the month for which they are due. In 
an effort to expedite the filling of an early vacated seat, the Town Council 

may consider any applications currently on-file at the Clerk’s Office for 
appointment without following procedure A – C above only after 

announcing the vacancies at a Council meeting and advertising said 
vacancies on the Town Website not less than a two week period. 

H. PROMOTION OF ALTERNATE MEMBERS: Alternate members are 

appointed to Boards/Committees to serve if a regular member is unable 
to take his/her seat. Alternate positions are an excellent method of 

allowing a citizen to become familiar with the requirements of the 
Board/Committee, and to gauge his/her ability to assume regular 
membership. It also gives the Town Council an opportunity to assess 

the citizen's qualifications to serve as a regular member. Whenever 
feasible, if an Alternate has been seated for at least twelve (12) 
months, and if the Board/Committee Chair recommends that an 

Alternate be promoted to a full position, the Council shall may make 
this appointment. (revised 6-24-2014) 

I. LIMITATION:  It is Council’s goal to engage as many citizens as 
possible.  If any one person could serve on every Board/Committee 
it would limit the opportunity for other citizens to serve.  Therefore, 

no one person shall be appointed to serve on more than two (2) 
Boards and/or Committees at the same time (i.e. a citizen may only 
serve on one Board and one Committee at one time; or on two 

Boards at one time; or on two Committees at one time).  The only 
exception to this is that because the Planning Board’s membership 

also sites as the Tree Advisory Board (per ordinance) these members 
may be appointed to one additional Board or Committee if properly 
applied for and appointed by Council as prescribed herein. (revised 

12-08-2015/1-12-2016)  

SECTION III: APPOINTMENT PROCEDURE: 

A. BOARD MEMBER APPOINTMENT (Planning Board, Board of Adjustment 
and ABC Board):  

1. All applicants interested in serving on a Board will need to have the 
recommendation or non-recommendation from the Board Chair upon 

their review of applicant’s information.  It is also recommended that 



3 

 

Adopted May 24, 2011 

Revised: 6-24-2014; 12-08-2015/1-12-2016; 

they attend at least one Committee meeting before being considered 
by the Town Council. 

2. New Board applicants shall be interviewed by the Town Council.  
Reapplying members will only be interviewed upon request of Town 

Council. 

B. COMMITTEE MEMBER APPOINTMENT: 

3. Any citizen interested in serving on a Committee must be interviewed 

by the Committee Chair and/or the Staff Liaison the first time he/she 
applies for the Committee. It is also recommended that they attend at 
least one Committee meeting before being considered by the Town 

Council. (revised 6-24-2014) 

4. The application will be submitted to the Town Council for review.  The 

Town Council will be provided contact information for the applicant.  
The Town Council members may contact the applicant if they have 
any questions for the applicant.  The applicant’s application will be 

placed on the agenda for appointment.  

5. Once placed on the agenda, the applicant will need to be nominated 

by a member of Town Council for consideration and a recorded vote 
will be taken for each nomination. 

C. FACTORS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

1. CURRENT MEMBERS - It is expected that regular members who 

are performing satisfactorily be reappointed. In determining 
performance, the Chair and Staff Liaison may consider the following, 

both for regular members seeking reappointment and alternates 
seeking regular appointment: 

a. Attendance: It is expected that the members 

understand the commitment required and attend meetings. 
Members which have more than three (3) unexcused absences 
should not be considered for reappointment. Members which 

have more than 20% or six (6) excused absences (whichever is 
less) should not be considered for reappointment as regular 

members. Extenuating circumstances may be considered. 

b. Effort: Members who have not become knowledgeable about 
their duties, or who have failed to comply with State law or 

Town ordinances should not be considered for reappointment. 

c. Attitude: While differences of opinion are anticipated 

and encouraged, and members must be allowed full voice, 
members are expected to be civil, and observe recognized rules 
of order and procedures. Members who are quarrelsome, 

disruptive, use their authority inappropriately, either on the 



4 

 

Adopted May 24, 2011 

Revised: 6-24-2014; 12-08-2015/1-12-2016; 

Committee, or with other Town officials should not be 
considered for reappointment. 

2. NEW MEMBERS - Criteria Considered 

a.  Service on other Board/Committee: Candidates who have 

served on other Committees and performed well. 

b.  Background: Education, experience, business, professional, or 
occupation which qualifies him/her for serving on the 

Committee. 

c.  Commitment: Effort should be taken to verify that the 
candidate is aware of the time commitment and any 

other factors in the appointment. 

d.  Potential Conflict of Interest: Candidates should be 

queried concerning possible conflicts between the 
appointment sought and business or other possible conflicts. 

D. NOTIFICATION OF ACCEPTED MEMBERS: Candidates who have been 

appointed should be notified by the Town Clerk within two business 
days.   

E. NOTIFICATION OF REJECTED MEMBERS/CITIZENS: Candidates who 
have been rejected should be notified in writing within two business days 
by the Town Clerk. 

F. SWEARING IN: Candidates who have been appointed must be sworn 
in by a Notary Public at the next scheduled Board/Committee meeting. 

SECTION IV: AMENDMENT PROCEDURE: 

This Policy may, from time to time, be amended by a majority vote of the 

Town Council at a regularly scheduled Council meeting. 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE: 

This Policy shall take effect immediately following a majority vote of the 

Town Council at a regularly scheduled Council meeting. 

REVISION ADOPTED JANUARY 12, 2016 

 
(SEAL)         ____________________________ 

         Michael L. Alvarez, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 

Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 










	4-26-16 TC Agenda
	4a Memo re noise barrier resolution
	4a2 Resolution NCDOT Noisewall
	9a1 budget amends 547-551
	9a2 budget amend 554
	9b1-Memo Classification Plan and Pay Scale
	9b2 2016-17 Pay Plan Draft 4-22-16
	9d 457 memo
	9d Resolution to join 457 R160426-2
	11a1 EDC ByLaws memo
	11a2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE BY-LAWS
	11b Memo_re_townhall_meetings
	11c M- 2016 Resurfacing Contract Bid Results
	11d1 M- Operational and Fiscal Review Phases II Fee Proposal
	11d2 Ph2 oper fisc rev proposal
	12a memoSpecial Legal Counsel reviewph1operfiscalrev
	12b Unionville IT Road
	12c Chestnut Pwky Ext Phase 1
	12d Chestnut Square Park
	12e1 ARF_DC_amendaptmntpolicy4-26-16
	12e2 Appointment Policy Amended proposed April 2016 draft
	12f
	12g



